
S . L  W   
S  D  

 

 

B   S ’ 
R  B  M  

 P  H ’  
A  26, 2025 

9:00 A.M. 

Page 1



 
AGENDA 

ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING’S 
August 26, 2025 

9:00 a.m. 
450 SW Utility Drive 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986 
CALL IN 1-800-743-4099   PARTICIPANT CODE 400494 

 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

D. Approval of Minutes  

1. August 4, 2025, Workshop  

2. August 5, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 

E. Public Comment 

F. Public Hearing 1  

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2026 for the District; Providing Authority 
for the District Manager to Expend Funds on Behalf of the District 

 PH 1 – Consider Resolution No. 2025-02 – Adopting the Budgets for Fiscal Year 2026 

4. Close the Public Hearing 

G. Public Hearing 2 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Receive Public Comments on Levying a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment for Water Management Bonds, 
Operations and Maintenance Costs within the St. Lucie West Services District for the Period October 1, 
2025, through September 30, 2026  

 PH 2 – Consider Resolution No. 2025-03 – Levying a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment for Water 
Management Bonds, Operations and Maintenance Costs within the St. Lucie West Services District 
for the Period October 1, 2025, Through September 30, 2026 

 

4. Close the Public Hearing 

H. Public Hearing 3 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Receive Public Comments on Amending Chapter III of the Rules of the St. Lucie West Services District 
Relating to Water, Wastewater and Irrigation Water System Regulations, Rates, Fees, Charges and Operating 
Policies for the Utility Services; Revising Schedules A and D to provide for Annual Rate Adjustments 
 

 PH 3 – Consider Resolution No. 2025-04 – Amending Chapter III of the Rules of the St. Lucie West 
Services District Relating to Water, Wastewater and Irrigation Water System Regulations, Rates, Fees, 
Charges and Operating Policies for the Utility Services; Revising Schedules A and D to provide for Annual 
Rate Adjustments 
 

4. Close the Public Hearing 

 

 
Page 2



 

I. District Attorney 

DA 1 –  Status Report/Updates 

J. District Engineer 

DE 1 –  Status Report/Updates 

K. District Manager 
Action Items 

DM 1 – Consider Authorization to Approve General Liability Insurance and Workers Compensation Insurance 
Provided by Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors 

 

DM 2 – Other Items 

L. Consent Agenda 

CA 1 – Monthly Report on Public Works 

CA 2 – Monthly Report on Utilities Operations 

CA 3 – Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects 

CA 4 – Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service 

CA 5 – Public Information Officer Monthly Report 

CA 6 – Financial Statements for July, 2025 

CA 7 – Transfer Funds for the R&R & UC Account 

CA 8 – Surplus Items 

M. Supervisors’ Requests  

N. Adjournment 

Page 3



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of August 4, 2025   Page 1 of 6 

St. Lucie West Services District 
Workshop Meeting 

August 4, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. 
 
 
(Please note: These minutes are not verbatim.  A CD recording of the 
Workshop Meeting is available on file.) 
 
Board Members Present 
 
Dominick Graci – Chairman – in-person 
Gregg Ney – Vice Chairman – in-person 
Diane Haseltine – Secretary – in-person 
Rose Carvelli – Supervisor – in-person 
Kevin Dolan – Supervisor – via telephone 
 
Staff Present 
 
Josh Miller, District Manager, St. Lucie West Services District (“SLWSD”) – in-person 
Gerard Rouse, Public Works Director/Assistant District Manager, SLWSD – in-person 
Searg Davidian – Assistant Public Works Director – in-person 
Andy Bomjardim – Public Information Officer – in-person 
Maddie Maldonado – Director of Office Administration, SLWSD – in-person 
Jason Pierman, Special District Services, Inc. (“SDS”) –- in-person 
Laura Archer, Recording Secretary, SDS – via phone 
Stephanie Brown, SDS – in-person 
 
Also present was Cameron Schwartz, Chairman Graci’s grandson. 
 
Guests Present (Sign-In Sheet Attached) 
 
A. Call to Order 
 
The Workshop Meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
It was noted that all 5 Supervisor were present. 
 
D. Approval of Minutes 
 1.  July 7, 2025, Workshop 

2.  July 8, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 
 
There were no corrections or revisions made to either set of minutes. 
 
E. Public Comment 

Page 4



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of August 4, 2025   Page 2 of 6 

 
There was no public comment at this time. 
 
F. District Attorney 
 DA 1 – Status Report/Updates 
 
Mr. Miller noted that the attorney’s report was provided in the meeting materials and 
was standard.  He further noted that #2 on the list, CGI Golf Course Agreement 
Renewal, was being presented under Agenda Item DM 5. 
 
There was no discussion regarding this item. 
 
G. District Engineer 
 DE 1 – Status Report/Updates 
 
Mr. Miller presented the report indicating that District Engineer, Fairborz Zanganeh, 
had formally retired from Infrastructure Solution Services.  Mr. Miller noted that 
attendance at District meeting would be between Rob Lee and Neako Villamil and 
that both were up to speed with the District’s engineering needs. 
 
That concluded discussion on this matter. 
 
 DE 2 – Consider Work Authorization No. WA-5-2506-SU between the St. 
Lucie West Services District and Home Dynamics Corporation of Boca Raton, 
Florida 
 
Mr. Miller presented the work authorization noting that it was for the construction of a 
9.09-acre development on Lot of SLW Plat No. 178 and was located on the northeast 
corner of NW Cashmere Boulevard and Old Inlet Drive, which was heavily vegetated 
at this time.  Mr. Miller indicated that the applicant proposes constructing 7-, 8- and 9-
unit townhome buildings with associated driveways and parking spaces, equaling 72 
total units. Staff are recommending approval of this work authorization with the 
following two (2) special conditions: 
 
1.)  All water, sewer and reuse improvements past the points of services shown on 
the plan shall be the responsibility of the applicant or subsequent owner; and 
 
2.)  All on-site drainage facilities, including the proposed control structure, remain in 
private ownership and must be the maintenance responsibility of the applicant or 
subsequent owner. 
 
There was no further discussion regarding this item. 
 
H. District Manager 
 Actions Items 
 
 DM 1 – Consider Resolution No. 2025-06 – Establishing the Fiscal Year 
2026 Workshop and Regular Meeting Schedule and Location 

Page 5



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of August 4, 2025   Page 3 of 6 

 
Mr. Miller presented Resolution No. 2025-06, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026 AND SETTING THE TIME AND 
LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Miller presented the proposed meeting schedule and noted that it reflected the 
same scheduling as in years past. 
 
There was no discussion on this item. 
 
 DM  2 – Consider District’s Holiday Schedule for the 2026 Calendar Year 
 
Mr. Miller presented the schedule, noting that there was nothing different than last 
year’s schedule. 
 
There was no discussion regarding this item. 
 
 DM 3 – District Manager Annual Performance 2025 
 
Mr. Miller indicated, pursuant to Condition 13 of the District Manager’s employment 
agreement, that the Board needed to determine whether the District Manager’s 
performance is overall satisfactory and if they wish to extend the term of the 
employment agreement according to subparagraph 14(a), 14(b) or 14(c). 
 
A brief discussion took place regarding the need to review this agreement annually. 
 
 DM 4 – Annual Engineering Certification of the Utility Systems 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Annual Engineering Certification of the Utility Systems, as 
submitted by Biran Stahl of Infrastructure Solution Services, noting that there were no 
significant differences from last year’s report. 
 
There was no further discussion regarding this item. 
 
 DM 5 – Consider Golf Course Irrigation Agreement with CGI St. Lucie, 
LLC 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Irrigation Quality Water Supply Agreement with CGI St. 
Lucie, LLC, noting that it is to supply irrigation water from the District’s onsite 
irrigation pond to the neighboring golf course.  Mr. Miller further noted that this 

Page 6



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of August 4, 2025   Page 4 of 6 

agreement would replace the existing 30-year agreement that was with PGA St. 
Lucie, Inc. 
 
Mr. Miller went on to indicate that the golf course had its own pump station which 
draws water from the District’s pond and that the District owns and maintains an 8-
inch water meter which is used for monthly billing purposes. 
 
Mr. Miller also assured the Board that the golf course irrigation pump station is 
monitored and inspected by the District and is included within the FDEP operating 
permit reporting requirements. 
 
A brief discussion ensued. 
 
 DM 6 – Consider Piggyback Agreement with Odyssey Manufacturing 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Piggyback Agreement with Odyssey Manufacturing, noting 
that the company had its principal office in Tampa and that they had been the sodium 
hypochlorite provider for the District since 2008, which services are vital in keeping 
the treatment plants in compliance with State guidelines.  The piggyback agreement 
is with the Bay County Utilities Contract, Bid No. 22-72 and will be for a term of 
twelve (12) months at a cost of $1.69 per gallon, which is up from the current delivery 
price of $1.65 per gallon.  Mr. Miller noted that this service would be funded out of the 
Water & Wastewater Treatment Plant Operational Budget and was within the budget 
for FY 2026. 
 
A brief discussion regarding this item ensued. 
 
 DM 7A – Consider Eighteen (18) Month Payment Agreement Option for 
Capacity Fees with LL of St. Lucie “Little Italy” 
 
Mr. Miller presented the walk-on item, indicating that the local restaurant, Little Italy, 
was using more capacity than the existing 1.0 ERC and was required to purchase 6.5 
more ERCs.  Mr. Miller indicated that Little Italy (Manager, Petra Demko) was 
requesting a longer payment plan than the 12-month option the District previously 
approved for other customers in the past.  Mr. Miller noted, after careful consideration 
between staff and the District’s Attorney, approval of this extended payment option is 
recommended. 
 
A lengthy discussion ensued regarding setting a precedent for other customers. 
 
Chairman Graci asked Mr. Miller to request Ms. Denko’s attendance at tomorrow’s 
meeting. 
 
 DM 7 – Other Items 
 
Mr. Miller noted that the NW Bethany Drive work was still one year due to delays. 
 

Page 7



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of August 4, 2025   Page 5 of 6 

Mr. Miller gave an update on the Reserve CDD, indicating that they had received a 
proposal from their engineer and were hoping to go out to bid for the 2 lines going 
under I-95 by the end of fall, February the latest. 
 
Regarding the injection well, Mr. Miller noted that the drilling rig you see on your way 
to the District’s offices was moving fast and was approximately 35% completed 
(approximately 600 feet down) two weeks into the project.  They are going 3,300 
“feet-ish” down. 
 
Lastly, Mr. Miller advised of a sewer line break at Wendy’s due to a drill going 
through it while trying to install a fiber optic, noting that the District would send them 
an invoice for the repairs to the District’s line. 
 
That concluded Mr. Miller’s updates. 
 
I. Consent Agenda 
 
 CA 1 – Monthly Report on Public Works 
 
 CA 2 – Monthly Report on Utilities Operations 
 
 CA 3 – Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects 
 
 CA 4 – Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service 
 
 CA 5 – Public Information Officer Monthly Report 
 
 CA 6 – Financial Statements for June 2025 
 
 CA 7 – Consider Transfer of Funds for the R&R & UC Accounts 
 
Mr. Miller presented Consent Agenda Items CA 1 through CA 7 and asked if there 
were any questions. 
 
Mr. Miller highlighted the Unsold and Unused capacity numbers on Page 60 of the 
meeting book, noting that they use these numbers as their base.  
 
Vice Chairman Ney asked Mr. Bomjardim for a summary of his Public Information 
Officer Monthly Report. 
 
Mr. Bomjardim noted that he had attended the City of Port St. Lucie Hurricane Expo 
along with 2 other District staff, noting that the event drew over 2,000 participants.  
They handed out some District branded products, such as Hurricane Preparedness 
magnets and Stormwater Informational pamphlets. 
 
Mr. Bomjardim also noted that he had submitted a press release to local media and 
posted it on the District’s website entitled, “SLWSD Begins Construction of Second 
Deep Injection Well,”  which announces the $7.7 Million project at the Water 

Page 8



St. Lucie West Services District Workshop Meeting Minutes of August 4, 2025   Page 6 of 6 

Treatment Facility, which will safely dispose of reverse osmosis concentrate and is 
set for completion by the end of 2025.  He also pointed out that the article indicates 
that the project as being directly tied to the utility rate increases. 
 
Mr. Bomjardim advised that he had connected with another reporter from the St. 
Lucie Voice newspaper to work on potential articles highlighting the District’s 
projects. 
 
There was no further discussion regarding the Consent Agenda items. 
 
J. Supervisor Requests 
 
Supervisor Carvelli had nothing further. 
 
Secretary Haseltine had nothing further. 
 
Supervisor Dolan had nothing further. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney noted that he had recently installed a low-flow toilet and would be 
receiving a $100 credit.  He recommended publicizing this project more. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the publishing of a customer’s e-mail address to which 
Mr. Bomjardim indicated that he had previously asked the customer’s permission who 
told him that was okay. 
 
Chairman Graci praised District staff telling them to keep up the good work. 
 
There were no further Supervisor Requests. 
 
K. Adjournment 
 
There being no further items to be addressed, the Workshop Meeting was adjourned 
at 9:49 a.m.  There were no objections. 
 
 
Workshop Meeting Minutes Signature Page 
 
 
 
    
Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   
 
 

Page 9



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2025  Page 1 of 7 

St. Lucie West Services District 
Regular Board Meeting 
August 5, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. 

 
 
(Please note: These minutes are not verbatim.  A CD recording of the Regular 
Board Meeting is available on file.) 
 
Board Members Present 
 
Dominick Graci – Chairman – in-person 
Gregg Ney – Vice Chairman – in-person 
Diane Haseltine – Secretary – in-person 
Kevin Dolan – Supervisor – in-person 
 
Staff Present 
 
Josh Miller, District Manager, St. Lucie West Services District (“SLWSD”) – in-person 
Gerard Rouse, Public Works Director/Assistant District Manager, SLWSD – in-person 
TJ Bayer – Assistant Utilities Director, SLWSD – in-person 
Maddie Maldonado – Director of Office Administration, SLWSD – in-person 
Lisa-Marie Beans, Human Resources Specialist, SLWSD – in-person 
Anderson “Andy” Bomjardim, Public Information Officer, SLWSD – in-person 
John Fumero, General Counsel, Nason, Yeager, Gerson, Harris & Fumero, P.A. – in-
person 
Neako Villamil, District Engineer, Infrastructure Solution Services. – in-person 
Jason Pierman, Secretary/Treasurer, Special District Services, Inc. (“SDS”) – via 
phone 
Laura Archer, Recording Secretary, SDS – in-person 
Stephanie Brown, SDS – in-person 
 
Also present were Petra Demko of the restaurant, “Little Italy;” and Donna Rhoden of 
the City of Port St. Lucie. 
 
Guests Present (Sign-In Sheet Attached) 
 
A. Call to Order 
 
Chairman Graci called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
It was noted that all Supervisors were present with the exception of Rose Carvelli. 
 
D. Approval of Minutes 
 1.  July 7, 2025, Workshop 

Page 10



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2025  Page 2 of 7 

 2.  July 8, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of July 7, 2025, Workshop and the July 8, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 
were presented for consideration. 
 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Secretary Haseltine 
approving the minutes of the July 7, 2025, Workshop, as presented, and the minutes 
of the July 8, 2025, Regular Board Meeting, as presented.  Upon being put to a vote, 
the MOTION carried 4 to 0. 
 
E. Public Comment 
 
There was no public comment at this time. 
 
F. District Attorney 
 DA 1 – Status Report/Updates 
 
Mr. Fumero presented the monthly report and briefly went over those items. 
 
There was a brief discussion regarding several items within the report. 
 
G. District Engineer 
 DE 1 – Status Report/Updates 
 
Mr. Villamil presented the report, highlighting several items. 
 
Supervisor Rose Carvelli arrived at the meeting location at approximately 9:07 a.m. 
 
 DE 2 – Consider Work Authorization No. WA-5-2506-SU between the St. 
Lucie West Services District and Home Dynamics Corporation of Boca Raton, 
Florida 
 
Mr. Villamil presented the item, indicating that this was for the construction of a 9.09-
acre development on Lot of SLW Plat No. 178 and was located on the northeast 
corner of NW Cashmere Boulevard and Old Inlet Drive, which was heavily vegetated 
at this time.  Mr. Miller indicated that the applicant proposes constructing 7-, 8- and 9-
unit townhome buildings with associated driveways and parking spaces, equaling 72 
total units. Staff are recommending approval of this work authorization with the 
following two (2) special conditions: 
 
1.)  All water, sewer and reuse improvements past the points of services shown on 
the plan shall be the responsibility of the applicant or subsequent owner; and 
 
2.)  All on-site drainage facilities, including the proposed control structure, remain in 
private ownership and must be the maintenance responsibility of the applicant or 
subsequent owner. 
 
He recommended approval. 

Page 11



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2025  Page 3 of 7 

A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Secretary Haseltine 
approving Work Authorization No. WA-5-2506-SU between the St. Lucie West 
Services District and Home Dynamics Corporation of Boca Raton, Florida with the 
following 2 special conditions: 
 
1.)  All water, sewer and reuse improvements past the points of services shown on 
the plan shall be the responsibility of the applicant or subsequent owner; and 
 
2.)  All on-site drainage facilities, including the proposed control structure, remain in 
private ownership and must be the maintenance responsibility of the applicant or 
subsequent owner. 
 
Upon being put to a vote, the MOTION carried 5 to 0. 
 
H. District Manager 
  Action Items 
 
As a courtesy to local business owner, Petra Demko, Manager of Little Italy of St. 
Lucie, Mr. Miller took this item out of agenda order to accommodate her schedule. 
 
 DM 7A – Consider Eighteen (18) Month Payment Agreement Option for 
Capacity Fees with LL of St. Lucie “Little Italy” 
 
A lengthy discussion ensued after which Ms. Demko was asked to approach the 
podium.  Ms. Demko acknowledged owing the money to the District, she just would 
like to spread the payments over a period of 18 months instead of the proposed 12-
month period. 
 
Chairman Graci suggested even lowering the ERC fees.  Mr. Miller stated that he 
would do what he could within the Tariff. 
 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Secretary Haseltine and 
passed unanimously approving the 18-month payment plan for 6.5 more ERCs, as 
presented. 
 
 DM 1 – Consider Resolution No. 2025-06 – Establishing the Fiscal Year 
2026 Workshop and Regular Meeting Schedule and Location 
 
Mr. Miller presented Resolution No. 2025-06, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026 AND SETTING THE TIME AND 

Page 12



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2025  Page 4 of 7 

LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Secretary Haseltine and 
passed unanimously adopting Resolution No. 2025-06, as presented. 
 
 DM  2 – Consider District’s Holiday Schedule for the 2026 Calendar Year 

 
Mr. Miller noted this schedule was the same as last year’s and recommended 
approval. 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Dolan, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney and 
passed unanimously approving the District’s Holiday Schedule for the 2026 Calendar 
Year, as presented. 
  
 DM 3 – District Manager Annual Performance 2025 
 
Mr. Miller presented the item and requested Board action. 
 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Secretary Haseltine and 
passed unanimously determining that the District Manager’s overall performance was 
satisfactory and he shall be eligible for a pay increase pursuant to the conditions set 
forth in subparagraph 4(b) of the District Manager’s Employment Agreement, 
choosing subparagraph 14(b) Taking action to extend this Agreement for one 
addition year beyond its then-current term. 
 
 DM 4 – Annual Engineering Certification of the Utility Systems 
 
Mr. Miller presented the item and noted that pursuant to the bond indenture, this is 
required to be brought to the Board every 2 years, but the District presents it to the 
Board annually, as an administrative item.  He recommended acceptance. 
 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Secretary Haseltine and 
passed unanimously accepting the Annual Engineering Certification of the Utility 
Systems, as presented by Infrastructure Solution Services (ISS). 
 
 DM 5 – Consider Golf Course Irrigation Agreement with CGI St. Lucie, 
LLC 
 
Mr. Miller presented the agreement, and a brief discussion took place. 
 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Supervisor Dolan and 
passed unanimously approving the Irrigation Quality Water Supply Agreement with 
CGI St. Lucie LLC, as presented. 
 
 DM 6 – Consider Piggyback Agreement with Odyssey Manufacturing 
 

Page 13



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2025  Page 5 of 7 

Mr. Miller presented the agreement and recommended approval.  A brief discussion 
ensued. 
 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Ney, seconded by Supervisor Dolan and 
passed unanimously approving the piggyback agreement with Odyssey 
Manufacturing for a twelve (12) month term for delivery of liquid sodium hypochlorite 
at a cost of $1.69 per gallon, as presented. 
 
 DM 7 – Other Items 
 
Mr. Miller indicated that the Bethany Drive project was about one year out, as the 
construction approval process had been delayed.  There was a brief discussion 
regarding responsibilities. 
 
Mr. Miller reiterated yesterday’s information regarding the Reserve CDD 
incorporation update, noting that the timeline indicates that the 2 lines going under I-
95 was expected to go out for bid by February 2026, but he is hopeful that it will be 
sooner than that. 
 
Mr. Miller opined that the drilling rig was quiet and approximately 35% completed.  He 
noted that December 10, 2025, was their approximate demobilization date. 
 
That concluded Mr. Miller’s updates. 
  
I. Consent Agenda 
 
 CA 1 – Monthly Report on Public Works 
 
 CA 2 – Monthly Report on Utilities Operations 
 
 CA 3 – Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects 
 
 CA 4 – Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service 
 
 CA 5 – Public Information Officer Monthly Report 
 
 CA 6 – Financial Statements for June 2025 
 
 CA 7 – Consider Transfer of Funds for the R&R & UC Accounts 
 
Consent Agenda Items CA-1 through CA-7 were presented for Board consideration. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney asked Mr. Bomjardim about the pamphlet created to encourage 
residents to not dispose of FOG (Fat, Oil & Grease) down drains.  Discussion 
ensued. 
 

Page 14



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2025  Page 6 of 7 

Discussion then ensued about whether “flushable wipes” were really flushable.  Mr. 
Miller noted that they get caught in the District’s pumps and pipes along with the 
biggest issue being dental floss.  
 
A MOTION was made by Secretary Haseltine, seconded by Vice Chairman Ney 
approving Consent Agenda items CA 1 through CA 7, as presented.  Upon being put 
to a vote, the MOTION carried unanimously. 
 
J. Supervisor Requests 
 
Supervisor Carvelli had no requests at this time. 
 
Supervisor Dolan had no requests at this time. 
 
Vice Chairman Ney had no requests at this time. 
 
Secretary Haseltine asked if there had been any feedback from the public regarding 
the proposed increase of fees.  Mr. Miller indicated that there would be a turnout at 
the August 26, 20205, Public Hearings. 
 
Secretary Haseltine also asked about fluoride.  Mr. Miller indicated it was a thing of 
the past. 
 
Chairman Graci expressed his gratitude for District staff. 
 
That concluded Supervisor Requests. 
 
K. Adjournment 
 
There being no further items to be addressed, the Regular Board Meeting was 
adjourned at 9:47 a.m. by Chairman Graci.  There were no objections. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



St. Lucie West Services District Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2025  Page 7 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Signature Page 
 
 
 
 
 
    
Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   

Page 16



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

PH 1 Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2025-02, of the St. Lucie West 
Services District Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2026, for the District; Providing 
Authority for the District Manager to Expend Funds on Behalf of the District; 
Providing an Effective Date. 

 

Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Attached is Resolution 2025-02 required to enact the proposed budgets for the St. Lucie West Services 
District. 
 
The proposed budget was presented and reviewed at the Budget Workshop on May 6, 2025. 
A complete copy of the Budget including all funds has been distributed and is Exhibit B to Resolution 
2025-02. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

Staff recommend approval of the FY 2026 Operating, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Budgets 
through adoption of Resolution 2025-02. 
 
District Manager: Joshua Miller 
 
Budget Impact 

Project Number:   Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:   This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 17



 
RESOLUTION NO.  2025-02 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ST. LUCIE 
WEST SERVICES DISTRICT ADOPTING THE BUDGETS FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2026 FOR THE DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING AUTHORITY FOR THE DISTRICT MANAGER TO EXPEND 
FUNDS ON BEHALF OF THE DISTRICT; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT:  
 

SECTION I - AUTHORITY   

(A) Pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, the Board of Supervisors of the St. Lucie West 
Services District (the "Board") has the power to carry out the purposes of the District. Such powers 
include the authority to acquire, construct, own, manage and operate, contract for management and 
operational services, dispose of, improve, expand and to have exclusive control and jurisdiction over 
water and wastewater utility production, treatment, collection, distribution and disposal facilities and 
systems within the State of Florida. 
 
(B) The District Manager has been engaged to provide management services to the St. Lucie West 
Services District (the "District"). 
 
(C) Notice of the meeting in which the annual budget is to be adopted was published on August 6, 2025 
and August 13, 2025. The proof of publication is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
SECTION II - ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET AND AUTHORIZATION TO EXPEND FUNDS 
 
(A) The St. Lucie West Services District General Fund and Water & Sewer Operating Budgets, Debt 
Service Budget, and Capital Improvement Program Budget for the Fiscal Year ending September 30, 
2026 attached hereto as Exhibit B is incorporated herein and are hereby adopted. Collectively, the 
Operating Budget, Debt Service Budget, and the Capital Improvement Program Budget shall be 
hereinafter known as the "Budgets." 
 
(B) Subject to the rules of the Board, the District Manager is hereby authorized to expend funds of the 
District for official purposes in the operation, maintenance, billing, customer services, construction, debt 
service payment, capital improvements and other business activities of the District in accordance with 
the adopted Budgets. 
 
(C) No contract or other commitment of funds, written or verbal shall be entered into without the 
approval of the District Treasurer, as to availability of sufficient budget and current or projected 
availability of cash. When such approval is given, the District Treasurer shall so indicate this action in 
the financial records of the District so as to restrict those funds from being used for other expenditures 
prior to the completion of a commitment for which the funds were approved. The District Treasurer may 
adjust the actual restricted amount as he determines that such a change is warranted due to the activities 
related to the commitment. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



(D) The Operating Budget contains the following categories: Operating Revenue, Operating Expenses 
and Non-Operating Expenses. The amounts shown within such categories are established as a target 
level for each specific type of revenue or expenditure indicated. Recognizing that the items listed in the 
Budget may actually be higher or lower than those estimated, the District Treasurer is authorized to 
reallocate the adopted Budgets within each category. Allocation of funds from one category to another is 
prohibited. Unless otherwise provided herein, or by an amending resolution adopted by the Board, only 
the Board is authorized to increase the budgeted amounts for a category. 
 
(E) Expenditures in the Operating Budget, Debt Service Transfer line item and Debt Service Budget 
may exceed the adopted Budget, without Board approval, if the required debt service has increased. 
 
(F) Expenditures in the Operating Budget Renewal and Replacement Transfer line item may exceed the 
Budget if it is necessary to do so to be in compliance with bond covenants. 
 
(G) Subject to the rules of the Board, the District Manager is authorized to spend funds not in the 
Budgets in the event of an emergency related to the District which is reasonably believed may result in 
danger or injury to persons, damage to assets of the District, or the material loss of the District to 
provide services. As quickly as possible, the Manager or District Treasurer shall report to the Chairman 
any such actions taken or to be taken in such circumstances. However, such communication shall occur 
as soon as possible but in no event later than 24 hours after such actions or events. 
 
(H) The District Treasurer shall notify the Board when he determines that the actual revenues of a utility 
system are likely to be significantly less than those indicated in the adopted Budgets and shall also 
prepare proposed revised Budgets for the Board's review and consideration. The District Treasurer shall 
also be responsible to assure that the District always complies with bond covenant requirements, and 
shall notify the Board if any action or situation may violate those requirements. 
 
(I) The Board authorizes the Manager and the District Treasurer do all acts and duties required of them 
by this Resolution and the Budget, for the full, punctual and complete performance thereof, and the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman and each member of the Board, officers, attorneys and other agents of the 
District are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all papers instruments and to 
do and cause to be done all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out the Budgets and 
transactions contemplated by this Resolution. 
 
SECTION III - EFFECTIVE DATE    

 
This Resolution shall be liberally construed to effect the purposes hereof and shall take effect on Octo-
ber 1, 2025. 
 
PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED at the meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the St. Lucie West 
Services District, on the 26th day of August, 2025. 

 
 

       ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________          By: _______________________________ 
Secretary          Chairman 
        Board of Supervisors     
          

Page 19



EXHIBIT A 
 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



Publication Date

2025-08-13

Subcategory

Miscellaneous Notices

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 BUDGET FOR THE ST.

LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT AND REGULAR BOARD MEETING

The Board of Supervisors (Board) of the St. Lucie West Services District (District) will hold a public hearing on

Tuesday, August 26, 2025, at 9:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in the Board Meeting Room

located at 450 SW Utility Drive, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986, for the purpose of hearing public comment and

objections to the adoption by Resolution pursuant to Sections 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, of the Fiscal

Year 2026 Budget for the District. A Regular Board Meeting will also be held in conjunction with the public

hearing.

If adopted by the Board, the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2026 shall be effective commencing with the

start of the Fiscal Year on October 1, 2025, and proceeding through September 30, 2026. A copy of the

proposed budget will be available at the District Office, 450 SW Utility Drive, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986.

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at

the public hearing is advised that the person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the

person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and

evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in

accordance with the provisions of Florida law for special districts. The meeting may be continued to a date,

time, and place to be specified on the record at the meeting.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual requiring special accommodations or an

interpreter to receive District information or participate at these meetings should contact the District

Administrator at 1-561-630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least five (5) calendar days prior to the

meetings. Persons who are hearing impaired may contact the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770 for aid

in contacting the Districts office.

Joshua Miller, District Manager

ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT

ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT

www.slwsd.org

Pub: Aug 6 & 13, 2025

TCN11554141

Page 21



EXHIBIT B 
 

GENERAL FUND AND WATER & SEWER OPERATING BUDGETS, DEBT 
SERVICE BUDGET, AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM BUDGET 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

PH 2 Public Hearing to Adopt Resolution 2025-03 to Levy a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment for 
Water Management Bonds, and Operations and Maintenance Costs, within the St. 
Lucie West Services District for the Period October 1, 2025, through September 30, 
2026. 

 

Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Provided for your review and consideration is the Adoption of Resolution 2025-03 to Levy a Non- Ad 
Valorem Assessment for Water Management Bonds, and Operations and Maintenance costs, within the 
St. Lucie West Services District for the period October 1, 2025, through September 30, 2026. 
 
The purpose of the Benefit Special Assessment, $132.51 per benefit unit, is to amortize the cost of 
constructing (repay bonds that are financed) the District’s stormwater management system. The bonds 
will be paid through the year 2026, unless they are refinanced. 
 
The purpose of the Maintenance Special Assessment, $206.00 per benefit unit, is to maintain and 
preserve the facilities and projects of the District. The annual amount is subject to change and is ongoing. 
For the 2026 budget year the $206.00 is a $30.00 increase from budget year 2025. 
 
 
 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

Staff recommends approval Resolution 2025-03 to Levy a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment for Water 
Management Bonds, and Operations and Maintenance costs, within the St. Lucie West Services 
District for the period October 1, 2025, through September 30, 2026. 
 
District Manager: Joshua Miller 
Public Works Director/Asst District Manager: Gerard Rouse 
 
 
Budget Impact 

Project Number:   Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:   This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 23



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-03

LEVYING A NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENT
FOR WATER MANAGEMENT BONDS, AND 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE COSTS, 
WITHIN THE ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES 
DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2025, 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2026.

WHEREAS, certain improvements existing within the St. Lucie West Services District and certain 

costs of operation, repairs, and maintenance are being incurred; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the St. Lucie West Services District finds that the 

costs of certain improvements and the costs of operations, repairs, and maintenance of the 

District during fiscal year 2026 will be funded through the collection of non-ad valorem 

assessments in accordance with the assessment methodology adopted by the District.  

    NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the  

        St. Lucie West Services District, as follows;  

Section 1.  

a. A non-ad valorem benefit special assessment as provided for in Chapters 170,

190, and 197, Florida Statutes, is hereby levied on the lands within the District, as described in 

the District Assessment Roll attached as Exhibit A, to amortize the cost of constructing (repay 

bonds that financed) the District’s stormwater management system, which system specially 

benefits all lands within the District.  The benefit special assessment shall be $132.51 per 

benefit unit within the District for fiscal year 2026.  

b.  A non-ad valorem maintenance special assessment as provided for in

Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes, is hereby levied on the lands within the District, 

as described in the District Assessment Roll attached as Exhibit A, to maintain and preserve the 

facilities and projects of the District.  The maintenance special assessment shall be $206.00 per 

benefit unit within the District for fiscal year 2026.   

Page 24



Page 2 of 2 

 Section 2. 

The assessment levy, and the lists of lands included in the District, as attached hereto, are hereby 

certified to the St. Lucie County Property Appraiser and maintained at the office of the District 

Manager, to be extended on the St. Lucie County Tax Roll and to be collected by the St. Lucie 

County Tax Collector in the same manner and times as St. Lucie County taxes.  The proceeds 

from the assessment levy shall be paid to the St. Lucie West Services District.  

         BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the  

proper public officials so that its purpose and effect may be carried out in accordance with law. 

 PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, this 26th day of August, 2025 by the Board of 

Supervisors of the St. Lucie West Services District, St. Lucie County, Florida.  

 ATTEST:    ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:________________________________ By:_______________________________ 

             Secretary/Assistant Secretary              Chairman/Vice Chairman  

Page 25



Page 26



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

PH 3 Consider Adoption of Resolution 2025-04 Amending Chapter III of the Rules of the St. 
Lucie West Services District Relating to Water, Wastewater and Irrigation Water 
System Regulations, Rates, Fees, Charges and Operating Policies for the Utility 
Services; Revising Schedules A and D to provide for Annual Rate Adjustments; 
Providing an Effective Date. 

 

Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Provided for your review and consideration is the Adoption of Resolution 2025-04 Amending Chapter 
III of the Rules of the St. Lucie West Services District Relating to Water, Wastewater and Irrigation 
Water System Regulations, Rates, Fees, Charges, and Operating Policies for Utility Services; Revising 
Schedules A and D to provide for Annual Rate Adjustments; Providing an Effective Date. 
 
The Public Hearing was advertised in the St. Lucie News Tribune on July 25, 2025, displayed on the 
SLWSD Website, included in the Monthly Newsletters, and a note on the bill was placed.  
 
The attached affidavit of publication verifies that the advertisement of this public hearing was published 
within the general circulation at least 28 days prior to the public hearing on August 26, 2025. 
 
 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

Staff recommend that the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution 2025-04 amending Chapter III 
of the Rules of the St. Lucie West Services District Relating to Water, Wastewater and Irrigation 
Water System Regulations, Rates, Fees, Charges, and Operating Policies for Utility Services; 
Revising Schedules A and D to provide for Annual Rate Adjustments; Providing an Effective 
Date. 
 
District Manager: Joshua Miller 
Public Works Director/Asst District Manager: Gerard Rouse 
Assistant Utilities Director: TJ Bayer 
 
Budget Impact 

Project Number:   Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:   This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 27



Page 28



2

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of August 2025. 

ST. LUCIE WEST SERVICES DISTRICT 
Attest: 

By: 
Secretary Dominick Graci, Chairman 

Board of Supervisors 

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

DA 1 Status Report/Updates 

 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      

This report is provided for your review and information. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

 
 
Budget Impact 

Project Number:   Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:   This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 34



 

750 Park of Commerce Boulevard | Suite 210 | Boca Raton, Florida 33487 
Telephone (561) 982-7114 | Facsimile (561) 982-7116 | www.nasonyeager.com 

 
PALM BEACH GARDENS • BOCA RATON • FT. LAUDERDALE • PALM BEACH 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
            

         
August 8, 2025 

St. Lucie West Services District 
District Attorney's Report 
Time Period July 19, 2025 — August 8, 2025 

As SLWSD Counsel for the time period identified above, I and my team completed the 
following matters: 

Completed Work: 
1) Attendance at Regular Board Meeting for August 5, 2025.  

2) Provided legal opinion to Director of Office Administration regarding mandatory 

public records disclosures and exempt personnel. 

In addition, we have the following items in work as of August 8th: 

Pending Work: 

1) City of Port St. Lucie 1E Easement Agreement – finalized agreement sent to the 

City. In review by City as of August 4th.  

2) School Board Interlocal agreement for stormwater facilities and equipment 

maintenance – sent to School Board on July 30th, follow-up sent Aug 6th. Awaiting response 

from School District. 

3) Draft Construction Interlocal Agreement with City - First draft completed – will 

coordinate with District for technical input and further development 

4) Lien Resolution - preparing recordable satisfaction of lien for residence trying to 

sell with 2021 Board-approved lien conflict (received June 18) 

5) Fountain maintenance agreements for St. Lucie West Commercial Association 

and FDOT.  

     
       OFFICE: 
       (561) 982-7114 
 

       FAX NUMBER: 
       (561) 982-7116 
 

       CELL: 
       (561) 315-4595 

 

 

JOHN J. FUMERO 
Board Certified State & Federal Government 
& Administrative Practice Lawyer 
 
E-MAIL ADDRESS:  
jfumero@nasonyeager.com 

Page 35



 
 

6) Top-down review of District’s General and Procedural Employment Rules to 

separate those that require a resolution and public notice prior to being changed and those that 

can be changed as a purely ministerial function. 

Sincerely, 

 
/s/ John J. Fumero 
John J. Fumero, Esq. 
For the firm 
  

Page 36



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

DE 1 Status Report/Updates 

 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      

This report is provided for your review and information. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

 
 
Budget Impact 

Project Number:   Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:   This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 37



 

 

Page 1 

MEMO 
 

 

 

 

1) General 

i) SLWSD and ISS have regular telecons and meeting discussions that are incorporated in the 

project statuses below. 

ii) SLWSD to communicate with ISS to provide direction and updates on IRSC and Reserve 

CDD projects. 

2) SLW018 - Stormwater Review 

i) Status: ISS previously received requests for development reviews for the following: 

a. Cashmere Starbucks 

b. Certification of As-Built work for Water & Wastewater Site Improvements 

ii) Action 

a. District Engineer Discussion / Consideration of Cashmere Starbucks Development 

Plan  - SLWSD Engineer to discuss approval procedures with Owner- Developer  

Agent. 

b. District Engineer coordinating with EOR to certify Site Improvements conducted to 

South Florida Water Management District 

3) SLW034 - Reserve CDD Engineering Evaluation  

i) Status: 

a. SLWSD Board approved the Task Order at their meeting on July 8, 2024. 

b. ISS submitted a Preliminary Evaluation Report on Oct 11, 2024. 

c. ISS submitted a draft Final Evaluation Report on Nov 19, 2024.   

d. ISS attended the SLWSD Board meeting on Dec 3, 2024 and presented the 

Report. 

ii) Actions:  

a. SLWSD and Reserve CDD Boards continuing negotiations for SLWSD to combine 

the Reserve system into the SLWSD system. 

b. ISS is on standby for question responses or additional Final Report comments from 

those negotiations.  SLWSD staff to review and provide any comments on the draft 

report prior to ISS producing a final document.   

Page 38



 

 

Page 2 

4) SLW035 - DIW Civil/Site and Piping Improvements  

i) Status: 

a. ISS received 60% Design comments from the District on June 26th, 2025. 

ii) Actions:  

a. ISS to address the provided comments with the associated parties and proceed 

with the 90% Design submittal and prepare permit(s) for the project.  We expect to 

be submitting 90% Design submittal no later than end of August.   

 

5) SLW036  Water Treatment Plant Expansion Design Build Criteria Professional Services 

i) Status: 

a. ISS received Notice to Proceed on April 9, 2025 

b. Project Kickoff meeting with SLWSD took place on June 24, 2025 

c. ISS is pulling together the design criteria package information for the document. 

ii) Actions:  

a. ISS to schedule site survey work.  

b. ISS coordinating with HydroDesign to obtain their scope/fee for their support of the 

new production groundwater well design.  

c. ISS is currently working to develop the design criteria details of each WTP unit 

process.   

6) SLW041 - Stormwater Infrastructure Engineering Evaluation 

i) Status: 

a. ISS has coordinated with Public Works collected field data July 22nd to conduct 

field investigations. Data from field investigations will be included in the 

Engineering Evaluation Report for the control structures. 

b. ISS is preparing the Preliminary Report Draft consistent with Task 3 and intends to 

submit this to the District no later than end of August. 

ii) Actions:  

a. ISS to prepare and submit Draft Engineering Evaluation for Control Structures by 

end of August for District review and input. 

7) Other 

8)  

i) Update Utility Standards - Future  

ii) WTP Onsite Potable Storage Assessment - Future 

iii) Concept Design & Cost Estimate for the WWTF Third Train - Future 

iv) WWTF Grease Collection System - Future 

v) SLWSD System Wide Irrigation Modeling (10 HOAs+)  Future 

 

Page 39



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

DM 1 Consider Authorization to Approve General Liability Insurance and Workers 
Compensation Insurance Provided by Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors 

Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Staff received the FY 2026 renewal proposal for General Liability Insurance and Workers Compensation 

Insurance Coverage provided by Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors on August 13,2025. 

The annual premium for General Liability Insurance and Workers Compensation Insurance decreased by 
1.0% from FY 2025. 

The Proposed FY 2026 Budget reflects these costs. 

 

 

 

 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

Staff recommend the approval of the Proposal from Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors 
 
District Manager: Joshua C Miller 
 
Budget Impact 

Project Number:  Available Budget for General Liability for UT Fund: $384,477.00 
                              Available Budget for General Liability for GF Fund: $110,162.00 
ORG Number: 5-07007  This Project: $339,477.00 
ORG Number: 1-07009  This Project: $110,162.00 
                                                                                     Available Balance Amount UT Fund:   $45,000.00 
                                                                                     Available Balance Amount GF Fund:            $0.00  
____________________ 
  Available Budget for Workers Comp for UT Fund: $33,842.00 
  Available Budget for Workers Comp for GF Fund: $19,875.00 
ORG Number: 5-14007  This Project: $33,842.00 
ORG Number: 1-15006  This Project: $19,875.00 
                                                                                       Available Balance Amount UT Fund:          $0.00 
                                                                                       Available Balance Amount GF Fund:          $0.00 
 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

DM  2    Other Items 

 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Discussion/Update items: 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 1 Public Works Monthly Reports 

 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      

This report is provided for your review and information as an update to the operations of the Public 
Works Department 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

 
 
Budget Impact 

Project Number:  Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:  This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 54



Service Orders* Work Orders**
68 5
23 8  
20 62
7 0
0 0

17 0
118 0
253 75

Service Orders Work Orders
15 0
2 0
6 0
0 0
0 0
9 0
1 0

16 0
19 5

Service Orders Work Orders
10 8
0 0
3 n/a
1 0
1 n/a
0 0
8 n/a

None

Storm Water Division:

Service Orders Work Orders
n/a 61
2 1
6 0
4 n/a
8 0

July2025

Operations & Maintenance:

Scheduled Maintenance

Improved Landscaping & Mowing
Miscellaneous

Lake Cleaning Schedule - Available Upon Request

Type
Locates
Street Flooding
Grate Cleaning

Preserves Maintenance
Vine Management
Miscellaneous

Operations & Maintenance:
Exotic Plant Removal Division:

Type
Encroaching Preserves
Lygodium Treatments
Exotic Vegetation Treatments
Tree Removals

Aquatics Division:
Operations & Maintenance:

Scheduled Maintenance

Miscellaneous

Hydrilla Treatments
Midge Fly Treatments
Harvester Removal
Surface Plant Treatments

Debris Removal
Wetland & Upland Treatments

St. Lucie West Services District
  Public Works Department

Division
Aquatics
Exotic Plant Removal
Storm Water
Vac Truck
Dredge Barge
Video Ray
Shop
Grand Total

Algae
Injection Treatments

Type

Page 55



Storm Water Division Cont'd:

Service Orders Work Orders
3 n/a
3 n/a
1 n/a

220

Service Orders Work Orders
0 n/a
0 n/a

0

Service Orders Work Orders
15 n/a
2 n/a

Service Orders Work Orders
21 n/a
70 n/a
27 n/a

118 n/a

* Service Orders are internally logged on an as needed basis by each department. No document is created.
** Work Orders are generated by office staff and distributed to the appropriate department. A physical 

document is created and distributed.

Type
Viewing Pipes

Scheduled Maintenance
None

None

Shop Division :
Operations & Maintenance:

Scheduled Maintenance

Miscellaneous

Type
Vehicle Repair
Equipment Repair
Other Repair
Total Repairs

Operations & Maintenance:

None

Storm Water Division / Video Ray:

Other Information

Operations & Maintenance:

Scheduled Maintenance

Storm Water Division / Dredge Barge:

None

Type
Dredging Pipes
Miscellaneous

None

Estimated Yardage Cleaned

none

Estimated Footage Cleaned

Scheduled Maintenance
None

Other Information

Miscellaneous

Operations & Maintenance:
Storm Water Division / Vac Truck:

Scheduled Maintenance

Type
Cleaning Out Pipes
Cleaning Out Structures

Right of Way Mowing done the first 2 weeks of each month.

0

Page 56



 

  

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 2 Monthly Report on Utilities Operations  

   
Summary 

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the day-to-day Utilities 
operations of the St. Lucie West Services District and will be provided once a month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

  

St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Utilities Operations Report 

 

Summary ERC Water/Wastewater Update

WATER

Commercial Accounts 528

Residential Accounts 6,308
Total Plant Capacity Based on 3.6 MGD 14,400.00 ERC's (Factor 250 gpd)
Water ERC's sold as of October 1st 12,346.00
Current ERC(use) including the Reserve CDD 9,285.00 ERC's (MAX over 12 Months)
The Reserve Commitment for 2023 0.00 ERC's
Unsold Water ERC's as of October 1st 2,054.00
Sold in FY 2024 (see water table below) 21.40 ERC's
Total Unsold Capacity for Water 2,032.60
Total Unused Capacity for Water 5,093.60

WATER RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL THE RESERVE
 WATER FEES 
COLLECTED 

ERC's sold in Oct-24 0.0 1.2 0 3,342.00$                                 
ERC's sold in Nov-24 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Dec-24 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Jan-25 0.0 8.9 0 24,786.50$                               
ERC's sold in Feb-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Mar-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Apr-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in May-25 1.0 0.0 0 2,785.00$                                 
ERC's sold in Jun-25 0.0 10.3 0 26,685.50$                               
ERC's sold in Jul-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Aug-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Sep-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
Total Water ERC's sold for FY 2025 1.0 20.4 0 57,599.00$                               

WASTEWATER

Commercial Accounts 475

Residential Accounts 6,307

Total Plant Capacity Based on 2.60 MG/TMADF 10,400.00

Wastewater ERC's sold as of October 1st 9,876.80

Current ERC(use) including the Reserve CDD 6,447.00 ERC's (MAX over 12 Months)
The Reserve Commitment for 2023 0.00 ERC's
Unsold Wastewater ERC as of October 1st 523.20
Sold in FY 2024 (see W.Water table below) 21.40 ERC's
Total Unsold Capacity for Wastewater 501.80
Total Unused Capacity for Wastewater 3,931.60

WASTEWATER RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL THE RESERVE
 WASTEWATER FEES 

COLLECTED 
ERC's sold in Oct-24 0.0 1.2 0 2,700.00$                                 
ERC's sold in Nov-24 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Dec-24 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Jan-25 0.0 8.9 0 20,025.00$                               
ERC's sold in Feb-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Mar-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Apr-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in May-25 1.0 0.0 0 2,250.00$                                 
ERC's sold in Jun-25 0.0 10.3 0 23,175.00$                               
ERC's sold in Jul-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Aug-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
ERC's sold in Sep-25 0.0 0.0 0 -$                                           
Total Wastewater ERC's sold for FY 2025 1.0 20.4 0 48,150.00$                               

New Connections in July: -                      ERC's 

 ERC's (Factor 250 gpd) TMADF 

Page 58



 

  

 

St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Utilities Operations Report
July-25

Water Treatment Facil ity
·      Total Finished Water Produced for July was 58.48 MG
·            The Finished Water Produced for the Previous Twelve Months was 712.47 MG
·      The Average Daily Flow of Finished Water for July was 1.89 MG
·      The Annual Average Daily Flow of Finished Water for July was 1.95 MG
·      The Three Month Average Daily Flow of Finished Water for July was 1.92 MG
·            The Water Treatment Plant Capacity is Operating at  52.4%
·            The Water Plant Annual Withdrawal Capacity per SFWMD WUP is at 79.8%

Water Treatment Plant Projects for July:
·     New Injection Well Construction Ongoing
·     Reserve CDD Service Area Incorporation Process Ongoing
·    

Wastewater Treatment Facil ity
·      Total Influent Wastewater flow for July was 46.26 MG
·      Total Effluent Wastewater flow for July was 45.91 MG
·      The Average Daily Flow of Influent Wastewater for July was 1.49 MG
·      The Average Daily Flow of Effluent Wastewater for July was 1.48 MG
·      The Annual Average Daily Flow of Influent Treated for July was 1.50 MG
·      The Three Month Average Daily Flow of Influent Treated for July was 1.50 MG
·            The Wastewater Plant Capacity is Operating at  55.2%

Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects for July:
·   Remove rags from Digester 1 with Vac Truck
·   Replace both ORP meters in anoxic basins

Page 59



 

  

 

Page 60



 

  
 

S/O DESCRIPTION TOTAL

IQ FOLLOW UP (ANGEL) 2
ACREAGE MEASUREMENT 1
COMPLAINTS 5
TIMER CHANGE REQUEST 0

SOURCE TOTAL (MG) ADF (MG) MAX DAY (MG)
LK CHARLES 0.000 0.000 0.000
LK ERNIE 13.998 0.452 1.810
MAIN PUMP STATION 64.501 2.081 3.953
STORM WATER TRANSFER 8.998 0.290 1.997
SURFICIAL WELLS 3.862 0.125 0.603
BRACKISH WELLS 0.497 0.016 0.038
GOLF COURSE 3.926 0.127 0.617

TOTAL (MG) % MAX DAY (MG)
REUSE 45.909 66.63% 1.815
STORMWATER 22.996 33.37%
WELLS (ALL) 4.359 6.33%

TOTAL 68.905 106.33%

0

* Also reported un UGU MOR

IRRIGATION FLOWS

FLOWS (CATEGORIZED)

PROJECTS

ADDITIONAL TIME REQUEST 
NEW PLANTINGS

IRRIGATION MONTHLY REPORT- JULY 2025

 SERVICE ORDERS

* CHECK FOR LEAK & 
OPERATE VALVES

19

Page 61



 

  

 

 
 

 

 

1.96 1.87

1.83 1.85

2.00 1.97 1.98
2.04

2.07 2.08

1.98
1.89

1.89

1.42
1.45 1.51

1.60

1.54 1.54 1.55 1.57
1.53

1.47

1.43
1.39 1.49

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.0

2.2

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25

F
l
o
w

I
n

M
i
l
l
i
o
n

G
a
l
l
o
n
s

St. Lucie West Services District 
Water & Wastewater Average Daily Flows

Potable Finished
Water Flow
Mo./Avg.

Wastewater
Influent Flow
Mo./Avg.

60.89

57.82

54.75

57.43
59.97

60.99
61.46

57.00

64.25

62.26
61.23

56.84
58.48

44.14 44.90
45.16 49.67

46.07
47.84 47.90

43.96

47.37

43.97
44.27

41.60

46.26

0.6

10.6

20.6

30.6

40.6

50.6

60.6

70.6

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25

F
l
o
w

I
n

M
i
l
l
i
o
n

G
a
l
l
o
n
s

St. Lucie West Services District 
Water & Wastewater Monthly Total Flows

Potable Finished
Water Total Flow

Wastewater
Influent Total Flow

Page 62



 

  

 

Page 63



 

  

 

6.71

4.91

7.88

12.28

8.35

1.18
0.20

5.40

0.64

3.12

1.82

10.40

8.488.298.21

2.80

7.08

1.02

2.77

0.51

5.12

3.84

2.22

12.52

4.03

3.21

18.75

2.16

7.11

2.13

0.85
1.41

0.62

9.22
8.77

9.21

6.99

8.578.70

4.06

2.26

3.68

6.00

2.20

0.87
1.48

1.97

8.66

3.66

5.53

12.2312.11

2.26

6.84

1.06

2.75
2.40

0.07

5.84

7.44

10.09

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

Ju
l-2

0

A
u

g
-2

0

S
e

p
-2

0

O
ct-2

0

N
o

v-2
0

D
e

c-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

F
e

b
-2

1

M
a

r-2
1

A
p

r-2
1

M
a

y
-2

1

Ju
n

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

A
u

g
-2

1

S
e

p
-2

1

O
ct-2

1

N
o

v-2
1

D
e

c-2
1

Ja
n

-2
2

F
e

b
-2

2

M
a

r-2
2

A
p

r-2
2

M
a

y
-2

2

Ju
n

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

A
u

g
-2

2

S
e

p
-2

2

O
ct-2

2

N
o

v-2
2

D
e

c-2
2

Ja
n

-2
3

F
e

b
-2

3

M
a

r-2
3

A
p

r-2
3

M
a

y
-2

3

Ju
n

-2
3

Ju
l-2

3

A
u

g
-2

3

S
e

p
-2

3

O
ct-2

3

N
o

v-2
3

D
e

c-2
3

Ja
n

-2
4

F
e

b
-2

4

M
a

r-2
4

A
p

r-2
4

M
a

y
-2

4

Ju
n

-2
4

Ju
l-2

4

A
u

g
-2

4

S
e

p
-2

4

O
ct-2

4

N
o

v-2
4

D
e

c-2
4

Ja
n

-2
5

F
e

b
-2

5

M
a

r-2
5

A
p

r-2
5

M
a

y
-2

5

Ju
n

-2
5

Ju
l-2

5
St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Rainfall 

Page 64



 

  

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 3 Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects  

   
Summary 

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the Capital Improvement 
Projects for the St. Lucie West Services District and will be provided once a month. 
 

WM001        4C Gate Automation Project Completed  

SW078         WTP Painting & Sealing of CROM Tanks Completed  

SW098         WTP Expansion Injection Well #2 Construction Began 

SW098         WTP Expansion in Design Phase 

SW099         Wastewater Emergency Storage Bypass Construction Began 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



 

  

Project No.
Project 

Engineer
Project 

Manager
Contractor / 

Vendor

 Approved 
Capital Budget 

Funds 
in Dollars 

 Encumbered / 
Actual Cost of 

Project in 
Dollars 

 Available 
2025 Budget 

Ongoing 
% 

Compl.

FY % 
Completion 

Project

O
c

t
-2

0
2

4

N
o

v
-2

0
2

4

D
e

c
-2

0
2

4

J
a

n
-2

0
2

5

F
e

b
-2

0
2

5

M
a

r
-2

0
2

5

A
p

r
-2

0
2

5

M
a

y
-2

0
2

5

J
u

n
-2

0
2

5

J
u

l-
2

0
2

5

A
u

g
-2

0
2

5

S
e

p
-2

0
2

5

WM001 GR 267,460         223,885         43,575            84% Stormwater Emergency Repairs
SW001 JM/TB 215,833         172,865         42,968            80% Lift Station Renewal & Replacement
SW037 JM/TB 250,000         211,228         38,772            84% Emergency Renewal and Replacement Projects
SW047 JM/TB 33,660            3,469             30,191            10% Structural Repairs Manholes
SW048 JM/TB 10,000            -                  10,000            0% Security Camera Upgrades
SW049 JM/TB 29,700            -                  29,700            0% Protective Coating Manholes
SW066 JM/TB 100,000         -                  100,000         0% WWTF Painting & Sealing of Tanks

SW078 JM/TB 150,000         126,120         150,000         95% 84% WTP Painting & Sealing of Tanks

SW084 JM/TB 5,000              828                 4,172              17% UGU Potable Water Flushing Devices
SW085 JM/TB 15,750            15,750            0% Emergency (Assoc. Irr.) R&R Projects

SW087 JM/TB 70,000            -                  70,000            0% Irrigation SCADA Conversion

SW091 JM/TB 5,000              -                  5,000              0% IRR Water Flushing Devices

SW098 ISS JM/TB YOUNGQUIST 34,746,777    8,750,000      25,996,777    25% WTP Expansion

SW099 ISS JM/TB 150,000         34,000           116,000         23% Wastewater Emergency Storage Bypass

Total 36,049,180$  9,522,395      26,652,905    
TOTAL PROJECTS IN PROGRESS OR COMPLETE 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
PROJECTS IN DESIGN PHASE 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3

Available Budget Amounts Listed in RED are Over Budget PROJECTS IN BID PHASE 0 0 0 1 2 1 1 2 1 1
Available Budget Amounts Listed in Blue are At or Under Budget PROJECTS IN CONSTRUCTION PHASE 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 2 2

PROJECTS COMPLETED 1 2 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

ONGOING CAPITAL R&R PROJECTS 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

New 16" Line Installed, Next 
Phase is Demo of Old Piping.

 PROJECT TRACKER - St Lucie West Services District

4C Gate Project Completed

WTP Tanks and Bldg Complete, 
Smaller Projects Bidding

INJ WELL #2 Construction 
Began Completion by 12/10/25

 

Page 66



 

  

 

 

 

Major Project(s) Update 

The schedules below are provided for your review and information as an update on the Capital Improvement Projects for the St. Lucie 
West Services District and will be updated and provided once a month. 

 

SW098 WTP EXPANSION-INJ WELL #2 PROJECT TOTAL DURATION= ONGOING

COMPANY TASK START DATE END DATE DURATION STATUS

0
8

/2
0

2
3

0
9

/2
0

2
3

1
0

/2
0

2
3

1
1

/2
0

2
3

1
2

/2
0

2
3

0
1

/2
0

2
4

0
2

/2
0

2
4

0
3

/2
0

2
4

0
4

/2
0

2
4

0
5

/2
0

2
4

0
6

/2
0

2
4

0
7

/2
0

2
4

0
8

/2
0

2
4

0
9

/2
0

2
4

1
0

/2
0

2
4

1
1

/2
0

2
4

1
2

/2
0

2
4

0
1

/2
0

2
5

0
2

/2
0

2
5

0
3

/2
0

2
5

0
4

/2
0

2
5

0
5

/2
0

2
5

0
6

/2
0

2
5

0
7

/2
0

2
5

0
8

/2
0

2
5

0
9

/2
0

2
5

1
0

/2
0

2
5

1
1

/2
0

2
5

1
2

/2
0

2
5

0
1

/2
0

2
6

0
2

/2
0

2
6

0
3

/2
0

2
6

SLWSD 
DESIGN AWARD/PURCHASE 

ORDER ISSUANCE
8/30/2023 9/1/2023 2 Completed

HYDRODESIGNS
DESIGN ENGINEERING/FDEP 

PERMIT APP SUBMITTAL
9/1/2023 3/24/2024 205 Completed

FDEP
INJ WELL PERMIT ISSUANCE 

PROCEDURE
3/24/2024 10/15/2024 205 Completed

SLWSD
ACQUIRE FUNDING/BOND 

ISSUANCE
3/27/2024 11/7/2024 225 Completed

SLWSD PROJECT BIDDING 11/7/2024 3/12/2025 125 Completed

SLWSD
PROJECT AWARD/PURCHASE 

ORDER ISSUANCE
3/12/2025 4/8/2025 27 Completed

ISS
DESIGN INJ WELL #2 SYSTEM 

CONNECTION
4/8/2025 8/6/2025 120 Pending

YOUNGQUIST NEW WELL INSTALLATION 5/6/2025 12/10/2025 218 Pending

HYDRODESIGNS WELL TESTING/PERMIT 
CLOSEOUT

5/6/2025 12/10/2025 218 Pending

ISS/TBD WELL #2 CONNECTION 12/10/2025 3/10/2026 90 Pending

CRITICAL PATH :  Must Encumber 5.0 % of Project Funds Within 6 months(Bond Requirement).

 

Page 67



 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 

SW098 WTP EXPANSION PROJECT TOTAL DURATION= ONGOING

COMPANY TASK START DATE END DATE DURATION STATUS

0
4

/2
0

2
5

0
5

/2
0

2
5

0
6

/2
0

2
5

0
7

/2
0

2
5

0
8

/2
0

2
5

0
9

/2
0

2
5

1
0

/2
0

2
5

1
1

/2
0

2
5

1
2

/2
0

2
5

0
1

/2
0

2
6

0
2

/2
0

2
6

0
3

/2
0

2
6

0
4

/2
0

2
6

0
5

/2
0

2
6

0
6

/2
0

2
6

0
7

/2
0

2
6

0
8

/2
0

2
6

0
9

/2
0

2
6

1
0

/2
0

2
6

1
1

/2
0

2
6

ISS WTP DESIGN CRITERIA 4/8/2025 11/9/2025 215 Pending

SLWSD DESIGN/BUILD BIDDING 11/1/2025 12/31/2025 60 Pending

SLWSD
PROJECT AWARD/PURCHASE 

ORDER ISSUANCE
1/12/2026 2/9/2026 28 Pending

CONTRACTOR/TBD NTP/MOBILIZATION 2/9/2026 4/10/2026 60 Pending

CONTRACTOR/TBD CONSTRUCTION 4/10/2026 10/7/2026 180 Pending

CONTRACTOR/TBD FINAL CLOSEOUT 10/7/2026 11/6/2026 30 Pending

ISS PERMITTING CLOSEOUT 10/7/2026 11/6/2026 30 Pending

SLWSD OPERATIONAL TESTING 10/7/2026 11/6/2026 30 Pending
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



 

  

 

Major Project(s) COMPLETED 

The schedules below are provided for your review and information as an update on the Capital Improvement Projects for the St. Lucie 
West Services District and will be updated and provided once a month. 
 
 
 

SW064 AMI METER PROJECT

COMPANY TASK START DATE END DATE DURATION STATUS

10
/2

02
2

11
/2

02
2

12
/2

02
2

01
/2

02
3

02
/2

02
3

03
/2

02
3

04
/2

02
3

05
/2

02
3

06
/2

02
3

07
/2

02
3

08
/2

02
3

09
/2

02
3

10
/2

02
3

11
/2

02
3

12
/2

02
3

01
/2

02
4

02
/2

02
4

03
/2

02
4

04
/2

02
4

05
/2

02
4

06
/2

02
4

07
/2

02
4

08
/2

02
4

09
/2

02
4

10
/2

02
4

11
/2

02
4

12
/2

02
4

01
/2

02
5

02
/2

02
5

03
/2

02
5

04
/2

02
5

05
/2

02
5

06
/2

02
5

07
/2

02
5

08
/2

02
5

KAMSTRUP NEGOTIATE REPLACEMENT COST 10/1/2022 10/31/2022 30 Completed

SLWSD PROJECT AWARD/PURCHASE ORDER 
ISSUANCE

11/8/2022 11/11/2022 3 Completed

KAMSTRUP PROJECT DELAY DUE TO KAMSTRUP 
PERSONNEL CHANGE

11/11/2022 5/10/2023 180 Completed

SLWSD/KAMSTRUP PROJECT CORRESPONDENCE AND 
CONFIRMATION

5/10/2023 7/17/2023 68 Completed

SLWSD/KAMSTRUP PROJECT KICKOFF MEETING 7/18/2023 7/20/2023 2 Completed

KAMSTRUP FCC LICENSE APPROVAL 7/18/2023 8/17/2023 30 Completed

KAMSTRUP METER/COLLECTOR CONFIGRUATION 
TESTING

8/17/2023 8/27/2023 10 Completed

KAMSTRUP METER/COLLECTOR TESTING FAILED-
DELAYED

8/27/2023 9/22/2023 26 Completed

KAMSTRUP SHIPPED COLLECTOR AND CONFIRMED 
TESTING

9/22/2023 9/29/2023 7 Completed

WATER WERKS INC COLLECTOR RECEPTION AND SIGNAL 
TESTING

9/29/2023 10/5/2023 6 Completed

L&A/WATER WERKS ONSITE COLLECTOR INSTALLATION 10/5/2023 10/11/2023 6 Completed

KAMSTRUP FIRST BATCH METER SHIPMENT 10/17/2023 10/22/2023 5 Completed

KAMSTRUP SECOND BATCH METER SHIPMENT 10/27/2023 12/27/2023 61 Completed

SLWSD/HST STAFF METER INSTALLATION PERIOD 11/6/2023 3/20/2025 500 Completed

SLWSD CUSTOMER PORTAL INTERFACE 
IMPLEMENTATION

3/20/2025 6/18/2025 90 Completed

SLWSD CUSTOMER PORTAL IMPLEMENTATION 6/18/2025 8/7/2025 50 Completed

CRITICAL PATH : No Critical Path for this Project

PROJECT TOTAL DURATION=COMPLETED 1,041 DAYS

 

Page 69



St. Lucie West Services District
Board Agenda Item

Tuesday August 26, 2025

Item
CA 4 Monthly Reports on Billing and Customer Service

Summary

The following are the totals from the accounts receivable reports.
1. Actual Consumption

Water 32,505,660 Gallons
Sewer 31,468,370 Gallons
Sewer BOD 0.00 Gallons
Sewer TSS 0.00 Gallons

2. Amount Billed
Total Water $299,475.40
Total Sewer $348,952.66
Total Irrigation $183,235.40

3. Billing
Total Water 6,737
Total Sewer 6,782
Total Irrigation 6,556

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the monthly Billing and 
Customer Service Operations.

Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Commercial Water 
16,282,460

Commercial Sewer  
15,244,030

Commercial Sewer BOD 0.00

Commercial Sewer TSS 0.00

Residential  Water 
16,223,200

Residential Sewer 
16,224,340

Actual Consumption  
July 2025

Page 76



CONSUMPTION
Commercial: Water 32,505,660
Water 16,282,460 Sewer 31,468,370
Sewer 15,244,030 Sewer- BOD 0.00
Sewer- BOD 0.00 Sewer- TSS 0.00
Sewer- TSS 0.00

Single: AMOUNT BILLED
Water 14,031,820 Water $299,475.40
Sewer 14,032,960 Sewer $348,952.66

IQ $183,235.40
Multi:
Water 2,191,380
Sewer 2,191,380 BILLS

Water 6,737
Sewer 6,782

AMOUNT BILLED/TOTAL CHARGES: IQ 6,556
Commercial:
Water $115,622.32
Sewer $128,364.11
IQ $52,851.70
TOTAL: $296,838.13

Single:
Water $154,230.28
Sewer $184,800.91
IQ $114,638.87
TOTAL: $453,670.06

Multi:
Water $29,622.80
Sewer $35,787.64
IQ $15,744.83
TOTAL: $81,155.27

TOTAL BILL COUNT
Commercial:
Water 528
Sewer 475
IQ 250

Single:
Water 5,192
Sewer 5,191
IQ 5,190

Multi:
Water 1,017
Sewer 1,116
IQ 1,116

CONSUMPTION BY GALLONS

Page 77



 

  

St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 5 Public Information Officer Monthly Report 

   
Summary 

This report is provided for your review and information as an update on the public information of the St. 
Lucie West Services District and will be provided once a month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

  

St. Lucie West Services District Monthly Public Information Report 

External Engagement & Media Relations 

1) Media Engagement – Safety Award Feature 
a. SLWSD was featured in the July 3, 2025, edition (Pg. 10) of the St. Lucie Voice in an 

article titled “SLW Services District Nabs Safety Award.” The article featured our press 
release on receiving the Safety Award at the Florida Association of Special Districts 
Annual Conference and highlighted our ongoing commitment to safety in all systems and 
operations. 

2) Community Outreach – Wastewater Plant Tour 
a. Hosted a wastewater plant tour for 10 Kings Isles residents, providing education on our 

wastewater treatment systems. Participant feedback was positive. 
3) Community Outreach – One Blood Drive 

a. Hosted the Big Red Bus One Blood community blood drive on July 18, helping support 
lifesaving donations. Additional drives are scheduled for September and October. 

4) Community Outreach – PGA Village Hurricane Expo 
a. Represented SLWSD at PGA Village’s first Hurricane Expo on July 30, attended by 

approximately 60–70 residents. Discussions centered on Reserve CDD Integration and 
fluoride, offering an opportunity to inform residents about the benefits of integration. 

5) Government Affairs – County and City Public Board Meetings 
a. Attended monthly St. Lucie County Board of County Commissioners and City of Port St. 

Lucie Council meetings on behalf of SLWSD, to monitor matters affecting the district. 

Internal & External Communications 

1) SLWSD Monthly (July) Newsletter topics covered: 
a. Article: “SLWSD Honored with 2025 FASD Safety Award.” 
b. Public Announcement: Launch of our new Manage Alerts feature. Online Bill-pay Portal is a new 

feature which allows residents to receive water leak notifications and tracks their water 
consumption directly to their email and text messages. 

c. Article: “SLWSD Begins Construction of Second Deep Injection Well.” 
d. Public Notice: Proposed Rate increase Public Hearing Notice. 

2) New Website: This month, and until the end of August, Granicus, our new website provider, is 
migrating content from the current site to the new one. The new website is scheduled to launch in 
early December. 

3) Informational trifold: Created an informational trifold on Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) to help 
the Utilities Department educate residents about the importance of keeping FOG out of drains. 
Improper disposal of FOG is a persistent problem and the leading cause of residential drain clogs. 

4) Public Messages Analytics: 

CATEGORY | Title Date Sent Message 
Method 

Number Of 
Views 

Page 79



 

  

NOTICE | Traffic Alert – Temporary Road 
Closure (SW Fountainview Blvd. & SW 
Peacock Blvd. Roundabout). 

July 29 Email 4,460 

WEBSITE NEWS | New Water Leak & Usage 
Alerts Now Available in Your Online Billing 
Portal. 

July 23 Email & Text 6,212 

EVENT INFO. | (REMINDER) Blood Drive - 
Friday, July 18, 2025 - 8 am to Noon.  

July 17 Email 3,516 

NOTICE | What is a Non-Ad Valorem SLWSD 
Assessemt Fee? 

July 14 Email 5,905 

NOTICE | SLWSD Rate Increase Notice of 
Public Hearings for Aug. 26, 2025. 

July 14 Email 5,974 

EVENT NEWS | Blood Drive - Friday, July 18, 
2025 - 8 am to Noon. 

July 10 Email 3,197 

NEWSLETTER | SLWSD July 2025 
Newsletter. 

July 9 Email 3,887 

 

Page 80



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 6  Financial Statements for July 31, 2025 

 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Attached for your review are the Financial Reports for the period ending July 31, 2025. 

 Financial Statements for all District Funds 

 Check Register for General Fund and Water & Sewer Fund 

o Summary of Checks over $35,000 

 Balance Sheet Report for all Funds 

 Bank Reconciliation Summary for all Depository Accounts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

No Action Required. 
 
Budget Impact 

None.   
 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 81



 St Lucie West Service District (General Fund)

 Income Statement Budget vs. Actual
July 2025

Oct 24-Jul 25 Budget YTD

$ +/-   Budget 
YTD

% of Budget 
YTD Total Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

1-04000 · GF SLWSD GENERAL FUND REVENUE 3,639,266.03 3,979,505.02 -340,238.99 91.45% 4,013,039.00

Total Income 3,639,266.03 3,979,505.02 -340,238.99 91.45% 4,013,039.00

Gross Income 3,639,266.03 3,979,505.02 -340,238.99 91.45% 4,013,039.00

Expense

1-05000 · GF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 10,002.94 13,087.50 -3,084.56 76.43% 15,705.00

1-06000 · GF DISTRICT MANAGER 8,820.93 36,601.18 -27,780.25 24.1% 41,829.00

1-07000 · GF FINANCE 194,744.81 238,342.84 -43,598.03 81.71% 248,429.00

1-12000 · GF GRANT MANAGEMENT 0.00 1,235.00 -1,235.00 0.0% 1,482.00

1-13000 · GF CLERK TO THE BOARD 9,279.92 12,938.34 -3,658.42 71.72% 15,526.00

1-14000 · GF AQUATICS DIVISION-PERSNL 246,009.44 358,812.60 -112,803.16 68.56% 430,575.12

1-15000 · GF ADMINISTRATION DIV-PERSNL 934,864.77 1,063,776.76 -128,911.99 87.88% 1,276,532.12

1-16000 · GF STORM WATER MGMT-PERSNL 398,613.53 483,795.10 -85,181.57 82.39% 580,554.12

1-17000 · GF EXOTIC PLNT RMVL DIV-PERSNL 236,299.13 296,517.50 -60,218.37 79.69% 355,821.00

1-18000 · GF SHOP OPERATIONS-PERSNL 56,716.27 78,962.50 -22,246.23 71.83% 94,755.00

1-19000 · GF GENERAL COUNSEL 35,900.54 26,859.16 9,041.38 133.66% 32,231.00

1-23000 · GF SPECIAL COUNSEL 4,800.00 3,282.50 1,517.50 146.23% 3,939.00

1-26000 · GF ENGINEERING 18,060.35 41,745.00 -23,684.65 43.26% 50,094.00

1-29000 · GF POLLUTION CONTROL 0.00 2,272.50 -2,272.50 0.0% 2,727.00

1-31000 · GF AQUATICS DIVISION-OPERATING 86,496.61 152,879.10 -66,382.49 56.58% 178,654.92

1-33000 · GF ADMINISTRATION DIV-OPERATING 211,044.97 250,088.20 -39,043.23 84.39% 296,105.84

1-34000 · GF STORM WATER MGMT-OPERATING 214,361.76 274,111.60 -59,749.84 78.2% 312,933.92

1-35000 · GF EXOTIC PLANT RMVL-OPERATING 33,589.22 55,763.30 -22,174.08 60.24% 66,915.96

1-36000 · GF SHOP OPERATIONS-OPERATING 16,913.01 29,545.80 -12,632.79 57.24% 34,954.96

1-46000 · GF RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT 232,791.31 267,460.00 -34,668.69 87.04% 267,460.00

Total Expense 2,949,309.51 3,688,076.48 -738,766.97 79.97% 4,307,224.96

Net Ordinary Income 689,956.52 291,428.54 398,527.98 236.75% -294,185.96

Net Income 689,956.52 291,428.54 398,527.98 236.75% -294,185.96

Page 82



 St Lucie West Service District (WMB DS)

 Income Statement Budget vs. Actual
 July 2025

Oct 24 - Jul 25 Budget YTD $ +/- Budget YTD % of Budget YTD Total Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

2-04000 · WB WTR MGMT BEN SRS 1999A REV 2,548,963.09 2,414,191.30 134,771.79 105.58% 2,608,654.96

2-07000 · DS WMB OTHER INCOME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total Income 2,548,963.09 2,414,191.30 134,771.79 105.58% 2,608,654.96

Gross Income 2,548,963.09 2,414,191.30 134,771.79 105.58% 2,608,654.96

Expense

2-05000 · WB  WTR MGMT BEN SRS 1999A DS 2,252,461.36 2,224,965.80 27,495.56 101.24% 2,429,611.96

Total Expense 2,252,461.36 2,224,965.80 27,495.56 101.24% 2,429,611.96

Net Ordinary Income 296,501.73 189,225.50 107,276.23 156.69% 179,043.00

Net Income 296,501.73 189,225.50 107,276.23 156.69% 179,043.00

Page 83



 St Lucie West Service District (WMB CAP)

 Income Statement Budget vs. Actual
July 2025

Oct 24 - Jul 25 Budget YTD $ +/- Budget YTD % of Budget YTD Total Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4-04000 · CP WMB CAP PROJECTS REVENUE 7,000.37 4,166.60 2,833.77 168.01% 5,000.00

4-07000 · CP WMB OTHER INCOME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total Income 7,000.37 4,166.60 2,833.77 168.01% 5,000.00

Gross Income 7,000.37 4,166.60 2,833.77 168.01% 5,000.00

Expense

4-06000 · CP WMB CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENSES 0.00 73,348.00 -73,348.00 0.0% 73,348.00

Total Expense 0.00 73,348.00 -73,348.00 0.0% 73,348.00

Net Ordinary Income 7,000.37 -69,181.40 76,181.77 -10.12% -68,348.00

Net Income 7,000.37 -69,181.40 76,181.77 -10.12% -68,348.00

Page 84



 St Lucie West Service District (Water & Sewer Fund)

 Income Statement Budget vs. Actual
July 2025

Oct 24-Jul 25 Budget YTD

$ +/- of   
Budget YTD

% of Budget 
YTD Total Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

5-04000 · WS SLWSD WATER & SEWER REVENUE 9,078,162.05 8,533,229.12 544,932.93 106.39% 11,272,529.04

Total Income 9,078,162.05 8,533,229.12 544,932.93 106.39% 11,272,529.04

Gross Income 9,078,162.05 8,533,229.12 544,932.93 106.39% 11,272,529.04

Expense

5-05000 · WS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 10,266.19 12,888.30 -2,622.11 79.66% 15,465.96

5-06000 · WS DISTRICT MANAGER 735.28 15,921.80 -15,186.52 4.62% 30,676.96

5-07000 · WS FINANCE 406,685.21 458,385.40 -51,700.19 88.72% 480,242.08

5-09000 · WS PROPERTY CONTROL 21,139.59 41,927.40 -20,787.81 50.42% 50,312.88

5-11000 · WS UTILITY RATE CONSULTANT 24,368.75 35,009.20 -10,640.45 69.61% 42,011.04

5-13000 · WS CLERK TO THE BOARD 15,735.45 17,060.00 -1,324.55 92.24% 20,472.00

5-14000 · WS ADMIN DVSN-PERSNL 1,228,271.97 1,332,661.70 -104,389.73 92.17% 1,599,194.04

5-15000 · WS WATER TRTMNT PLANT-PERSNL 387,797.35 434,310.70 -46,513.35 89.29% 521,172.84

5-16000 · WS WASTEWATER TRTMT PL-PERSNL 348,660.32 442,563.40 -93,903.08 78.78% 531,076.08

5-17000 · WS UNDERGROUND UTIL-PERSNL 831,828.77 924,704.10 -92,875.33 89.96% 1,109,644.92

5-18000 · WS IRRIGATION DIV-PERSNL 54,821.86 62,557.40 -7,735.54 87.63% 75,068.88

5-40000 · WS SHOP DIV - PERSNL 144,659.79 156,354.10 -11,694.31 92.52% 187,624.92

5-19000 · WS GENERAL COUNSEL 34,459.38 35,320.80 -861.42 97.56% 42,384.96

5-23000 · WS SPECIAL COUNSEL 28,810.00 730.58 28,079.42 3,943.44% 730.58

5-26000 · WS ENGINEERING 119,398.00 84,833.30 34,564.70 140.74% 101,799.96

5-27000 · WATER & SEWER DEBT SERVICE 1,829,982.27 375,138.00 1,454,844.27 487.82% 2,565,276.00

5-28000 · WS  WATER & SEWER SERVICES 567,722.50 567,722.50 0.00 100.0% 681,267.00

5-29000 · WS ADMIN DIV-OPERATING 446,565.36 670,430.90 -223,865.54 66.61% 787,517.08

5-30000 · WS WATER TRTMNT PLANT-OPER 665,963.41 936,664.20 -270,700.79 71.1% 1,112,597.04

5-31000 · WS WASTEWATER TRTMT PL-OPER 661,392.13 852,597.50 -191,205.37 77.57% 993,117.00

5-32000 · WS UNDERGROUND UTIL-OPERATING 478,251.94 520,673.30 -42,421.36 91.85% 614,807.96

5-33000 · WS IRRIGATION DIV-OPERATING 127,124.08 266,760.80 -139,636.72 47.66% 320,112.96

5-41000 · WS SHOP DIV - OPER 73,947.56 76,312.50 -2,364.94 96.9% 82,275.00

Total Expense 8,508,587.16 8,321,527.88 187,059.28 102.25% 11,964,848.14

Net Ordinary Income 569,574.89 211,701.24 357,873.65 269.05% -692,319.10

Net Income 569,574.89 211,701.24 357,873.65 269.05% -692,319.10

Page 85



 St Lucie West Service District (W&S Capital Outlay)

 Income Statement Budget vs. Actual
July 2025

Oct 24-Jul 25 Budget YTD

$ +/- Budget 
YTD

% of Budget 
YTD Total Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

5-36000 · WS CAP REVENUES

5-36001 · INTEREST - R&R 49,244.13

5-36002 · INTEREST - WWCF 16,267.05 0.00

5-36003 · INTEREST - BOND CONST 742,110.02 0.00

5-36004 · INTEREST - WCF 31,668.39 0.00

5-36005 · WATER IMPACT FEES 27,529.00 3,193.30 24,335.70 862.09% 3,831.96

5-36006 · WW IMPACT FEES 21,423.00 2,396.60 19,026.40 893.89% 2,875.92

5-36007 · R&R TRANS FROM W&S OPERATING 567,722.50 567,722.50 0.00 100.0% 681,267.00

Total 5-36000 · WS CAP REVENUES 1,455,964.09 573,312.40 882,651.69 253.96% 687,974.88

Total Income 1,455,964.09 573,312.40 882,651.69 253.96% 687,974.88

Gross Income 1,455,964.09 573,312.40 882,651.69 253.96% 687,974.88

Expense

5-37000 · WS RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT CIP

5-37004 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW049 0.00 29,700.00 -29,700.00 0.0% 29,700.00

5-37006 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW064 14,625.00

5-37007 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW001 172,865.23 215,833.00 -42,967.77 80.09% 215,833.00

5-37009 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW037 211,228.47 448,161.22 -236,932.75 47.13% 448,161.22

5-37013 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW047 14,650.94 33,660.00 -19,009.06 43.53% 33,660.00

5-37020 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW066 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0% 100,000.00

5-37028 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW078 126,120.00 270,550.00 -144,430.00 46.62% 270,550.00

5-37031 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW084 828.50 5,000.00 -4,171.50 16.57% 5,000.00

5-37032 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW085 0.00 15,750.00 -15,750.00 0.0% 15,750.00

5-37034 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW087 0.00 70,000.00 -70,000.00 0.0% 70,000.00

5-37038 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW091 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0% 5,000.00

5-37039 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW092 3,998.52 0.00

5-37045 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW048 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0% 10,000.00

5-37046 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW098 0.00 160,000.00 -160,000.00 0.0% 160,000.00

5-37047 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW099 35,130.70 160,000.00

Total 5-37000 · WS RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT CIP 579,447.36 1,363,654.22 -784,206.86 42.49% 1,523,654.22

5-38000 · WS WATER CONNECT FEE CIP

5-38015 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW098 360,975.33 50,000.00 310,975.33 721.95% 50,000.00

Total 5-38000 · WS WATER CONNECT FEE CIP 360,975.33 50,000.00 310,975.33 721.95% 50,000.00

5-39000 · WS WASTEWATER CONNECT FEE CIP

5-39010 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW067 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

5-38015 · CAPITAL PROJECTS SW098 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total 5-39000 · WS WASTEWATER CONNECT FEE CIP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total Expense 940,422.69 1,413,654.22 -473,231.53 66.52% 1,573,654.22

Net Ordinary Income 515,541.40 -840,341.82 1,355,883.22 -61.35% -885,679.34

Net Income 515,541.40 -840,341.82 1,355,883.22 -61.35% -885,679.34

 Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 
 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 7 Consider Approval to Transfer Funds for the R&R Account and UC Account Requisitions 
for Fiscal Year 2025 

 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Attached for your review and approval is a request to transfer funds from the Renewal & Replacement 
Account (R&R) and Utility Construction Account (UC) for expenses that are previously budgeted 
project-related expenses for FY 2025 and have been previously approved by the Board to be funded from 
one of the afore mentioned accounts. 
 
All of the expenditures are appropriate for payment from the R&R Account and UC Account 
Requisitions. All expenditures are in compliance with the District’s policy where the cost exceeds the 
capitalization threshold for Fixed Assets. 
 

 $12,463.95 – Renewal & Replacement Account 

 $71,017.08 – Utility Construction Account 

All Invoices for this requisition are attached for your review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

Staff recommends Board approval to transfer funds from the R&R Account for FY 2025 $12,463.95 
and UC Account for FY 2025 $71,017.08 to the Public Fund Checking account for reimbursement 
for payments made that have been budgeted to be funded by this account. 
 
Budget Impact 

None. 
   
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

 

Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



St. Lucie West Services District 
Board Agenda Item 

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 

Item                                                                                                                                                             

CA 8 Surplus items 

 
Summary                                                                                                                                                      

Provided for your review and approval. District Staff has determined that a declaration of surplus 
equipment is required from the Board of Supervisors for the liquidation of the following items. The 
declaration will allow staff to dispose of the following items: 
 

Item Model Serial/ID Department Tag No. 

2015 Ford F-150 1FTFX1EF9FFA41953 Aquatics 031 

     

     

     

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Recommendation                                                                                                                                      

Staff recommends approval for the declaration of surplus equipment. 
 
District Manager: Joshua Miller 
 
Budget Impact 

Project Number:  Available Project Budget: $0.00 
ORG Number:  This Project: $0.00 
  Available Balance: $0.00 
Board Action 

Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Page 100



 
Supervisors’ Requests 

Page 101



 
Adjournment 

Page 102


	St. Lucies West Services District - August 26, 2025 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearings
	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	August 4, 2025, Workshop
	August 5, 2025, Regular Board Meeting

	Public Hearing 1
	PH 1 – Consider Resolution No. 2025-02 – Adopting the Budgets for Fiscal Year 2026

	Public Hearing 2
	PH 2 – Consider Resolution No. 2025-03 – Levying a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment for Water Management Bonds, Operations and Maintenance Costs within the St. Lucie West Services District for the Period October 1, 2025, Through September 30, 2026

	Public Hearing 3
	PH 3 – Consider Resolution No. 2025-04 – Amending Chapter III of the Rules of the St. Lucie West Services District Relating to Water, Wastewater and Irrigation Water System Regulations, Rates, Fees,Charges and Operating Policies for the Utility Services; Revising Schedules A and D to provide for Annual Rate Adjustments

	District Attorney
	DA 1 – Status Report/Updates

	District Engineer
	DE 1 – Status Report/Updates

	District Manager
	DM 1 – Consider Authorization to Approve General Liability Insurance and Workers Compensation Insurance Provided by Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors
	DM 2 – Other Items

	Consent Agenda
	CA 1 – Monthly Report on Public Works
	CA 2 – Monthly Report on Utilities Operations
	CA 3 – Monthly Report on Capital Improvement Projects
	CA 4 – Monthly Report on Billing and Customer Service
	CA 5 – Public Information Officer Monthly Report
	CA 6 – Financial Statements for July, 2025
	CA 7 – Transfer Funds for the R&R & UC Account
	CA 8 – Surplus Items





